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The Dunn House was built in 1909 by Mrs. L. M. Dunn and her four sons to
serve as a home for the family. Constructed by Will Black when the Dunn -
farm was a small operation, the house shows a simplistic architectural
style indicative of frugal, pragmatic, and,yet, artistic builders.

The one-and-one-half storey clapboard building is L-shaped with medium
gable roofs over each section. The projecting eaves have boxed cornice
and plain frieze. Three single-unit chimney stacks surmount the house,
with two on the front slope and one straddling the rldge of the rear
section.

A large gable dormer, with overhang, emerges from the center of the front
slope. There is wood siding of an imbricated pattern under the cornice
of the dormer. Beneath the imbrication, there is a small eyebrow window,
which is divided by two mullions into three lights.

An enclosed balcony projects from the gable end of the east elevation.
This balcony is above a single-storey porch; the floor of the balcony is
built into the roof of the porch. The balcony has a hipped roof with
decorative brackets and gingerbread trim under the boxed cornice.

An element of classicism is suggested by the eighteen Doric columns that
support the roof of the porch. This porch gives a light and airy effect
due to the spacing of the slender columns. The porch, gently curving
around the southeast corner of the building, extends across the front
(south) ‘and east ‘elevations and a portion of the rear {(north) elevation.

The windows ih the hduse are réctangular with double-hung sashes and plain
moulding. The architraves of the main front and rear entries and of the
balcony entry consist of blind-and~flush transoms and flanking glass panels.
Another entry, that to the kitchen, is a simple wooden door.

Lumber for the house was sawed from choice pine timber at the small Dunn
sawmill, which was operated across the highway from where the house is

now located. The lumber was stacked and dried for approximately two years
before it was used in the construction of the building.

The bottom of the house is about a foot above ground level on a foundation
of brick stilts. Huge 3" X 14" pine floor joists, almost entirely free
of knots, are typical of the structural strength of the house.

The interior of the house has features that further suggest classical
design., The fireplace in -the main hallway has Doric columns supporting
the mantelpiece, and Corinthian columns support the mantelpiece in the
mastexr bedroom. A two-run, open-well stairway leads to the second floor.

Thare have been no additions or major changes to the building, and it
remains in an excellent state of preservation. The Dunn House is a typical
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example of the type of home that was owned by-a successful farming family
in Calhoun County, Arkansas in the early 20th century.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The Dunn family became established in Calhoun County when pioneer settler
James S. Dunn moved to Arkansas from Georgia in 1843. He selected farming
as his pursuit in lLife and established an occupational trend that was to
be followed by several generations of the Dunn family.

Lucius Dunn, grandson of James Dunn, began his farm on a small plot of
land west of Hampton, Arkansas. He raised cotton, operated a cotton gin
and ran a small saw mill for his own use. Lucius Dunn died at age fifty-
four in 1899, leaving his prospering farm in the hands of his wife, Emma,
and their sons.

The Dunn family continued to provide for themselves and, in 1909, built
the Dunn House. The one-and-one-half storey clapboard home with an
L-shaped plan was the headquarters for the varied Dunn enterprises.
Builder Will Black included such features as a large gable dormer in the
center of the front slope and an enclosed balcony that projects from the
gable end of the east elevation. Nelson Thornton is credited with doing
the woodwork trim ranging in delicacy from the large Doric columns that
support the porch roof to the smaller columns of the fireplaces.

As the farm continued to grow and develop, the Dunns sustained an image

of being good neighbors. They made their house available as an overnight
station for people traveling from Camden and Locust Bayou to trade at
Hampton. No charge was levied for the hospitality, and the Dunns seemed
to welcome the inconvenience to themselves as opportunities for friendship.

By the 1930's the Dunn farm had grown to encompass over 1,400 acres of
farmland. Emma Dunn had died in 1923 and the name of the Dunn holdings
evolved to the "Dunn Brothers," referring to Allen and Gary Dunn. Not
only had they increased the size of the farm, but they sought to incor-
porate innovative methods in the growing and production of their crops.

The size and productivity of the bunn cotton gin increased over the years.
The Dunn's £irst cotton gin was locataed across the highway from the Dunn
House, and it relied on a lone horse for operating power. In 1914 the
Dunns built a modern steam-powered cotton gin, the first of its kind in
Calhouwn County. Located on U.S. Highway 167 in Hampton, the gin had six
gin stands with seventy saws on each stand to separate the seed from the
cotton. The gin was capable of turning out over 800 bales of cotton per

year.
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Anotlhier feature of the Dunn plantation was the development of livestock.
The herd consisted of over 100 head of choice Guernsey, Jersey, Hereford
and Black Angus cattle.

All activity on the Dunn plantation radiated from the Dunn House. First
mder the direction of the widow Emma Dunn, the house has remained in
the Dunn family for all but one year of its existence. When Emma Dunn
died in 1923, Guy Dunn and his family made it their home, while Allen
Dunn lived in Hampton. After Guy Dunn died, his wife sold the estate

in 1966 to Dxr. D. H. Allen, a physician from Wichita, Texas. About one
year latexr, the present owner Allen J. Dunn, the great-nephew of Lucius
and Fmma Dunn, bought the house and five acres of land from Dr. Allen.

For over a century the Dunns were Arkansas farmers. Because of their
energy and initiative, they achieved much success in south Arkansas
agriculture. This success crowned the family's endeavors in sawmilling,
cotton-ginning and cattle-raising, as well as in the growing of cotton.
At the same time, the Dunns were successful in their social dealings in
south Arkansas. Their image as dependable and courteous neighbors spread
to much of Calhoun County.

Today the Dunn House still stands, unaltered and functioning. Its
appearance of strength and solidity is reflective of the family which
built and occupied it for so long. The Dunn House is a significant
reminder of the economically and socially successful farmer of south
Arkansas in the early 20th Century.
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